

Department of Planning and Community Development 785 Forest Parkway Forest Park, Georgia 30297 (404) 366-4720

#### Planning Commission Minutes September 15, 2022

Call to Order: The meeting of the City of Forest Park Planning Commission was called to order

at 6:04 p.m. on September 15, 2022.

Roll Call: Roderick Jackson, Donald Williams, Azfar Haque, Andy Porter and Michael

Clinkscales were present. Also present was Daija Blocker, Secretary; Caity Chandler, Planner and Director of Department of Planning and Community

Development, LaShawn Gardiner.

Approval of

Minutes: Azfar Haque made a motion to approve the minutes from the August 18, 2022,

Planning Commission meeting. Michael Clinkscales seconded the motion. The

vote was unanimous.

Old Business: No Old Business.

**New Business:** 

Item 1: Vote on Chair and Vice Chair

Andy Porter stated that he was happy to stay in his position as Vice Chair.

Azfar Haque stated that Andy should be Chair by default because he was

already the Vice Chair.

Azfar Haque nominated Andy to be the Chair for the Planning Commission. Michael Clinkscales seconded the motion to nominate Andy Porter as the Chair. Voting

is unanimous.

Michal Clinkscales nominated Azfar Haque as the Vice Chair. Roderick

Jackson seconded the nomination. The vote was unanimous.



Department of Planning and Community Development 785 Forest Parkway Forest Park, Georgia 30297 (404) 366-4720

Item 2: Case: PC-2022-08

Variance at 1234 Lloyd Drive

Variance to reduce the minimum setback requirement between an accessory structure and the main structure from the required ten feet to four feet.

Caity Chandler stated that the applicant, Jesus Perez, is requesting a variance to reduce the minimum setback requirement between an accessory structure and the main structure from the required ten feet to four feet as part of a pavilion construction project. The subject property is zoned RS Single-Family Residential. In this district, accessory structures must be placed no less than 10 feet from the main structure. The applicant constructed a pavilion in the rear yard of his property without a permit. The unpermitted structure was built four feet from the main structure; ten feet is required. The applicant is requesting a variance to reduce the minimum setback requirement of ten (10) feet to four feet to accommodate for this pavilion. The Planning Commission may grant a variance from the development standards of this ordinance where permitted under this Ordinance, if, after a public hearing, it makes findings of facts in writing that:

- facts in writing, that:
  1. The approval will not be injurious to the public health, safety, morals, and general welfare of the community.
  - 2. The use and value of the area adjacent to the property included in the variance will not be affected in a adverse manner; and
  - 3. The strict application of the terms of this ordinance will result in a practical difficulty in the use of the property. This situation shall not be self-imposed, nor be based on a perceived reduction of, or restriction on, economic gain.

Staff recommends **APPROVAL** of a variance to reduce the setback requirement between the accessory structure and the main structure from ten feet to four feet to accommodate for this pavilion. The requested variance will not be injurious to the public health, safety, morals, and general welfare of the community, and the use and value of the area adjacent to the property included in the variance will not be affected in a substantially adverse manner with the following condition: If the Planning Commission approves the Variance, the applicant must apply for and receive a building permit to construct and complete the pavilion.

Andy Porter asks if the representative is here to speak on behalf of the variance.

Yesenia Perez, representing her father Jesus Perez, stated that the pavilion was a surprise for their father while he was in Mexico. The sons work in construction, so they wanted to build the pavilion, but they did not know they needed to have a permit. They wanted the pavilion because they have a big family and like to spend time together.

Andy Porter asked if anyone opposed the variance and if not, then the public comment part is closed.

Azfar Haque iasked if the second structure in the photos are allowed.



Department of Planning and Community Development 785 Forest Parkway Forest Park, Georgia 30297 (404) 366-4720

Caity Chandler answered yes, they are allowed 2-3 sheds/structures per the new ordinance.

Andy Porter asked if the structure violates any other setbacks on the side.

Caity Chandler stated no, the only problem is the distance between the main structure and accessory structure.

Roderick Jackson asked when did Code Enforcement place a Stop Work order on the structure because the pictures show two different structures. He stated that in the first picture the roof is not finished but in the second picture they did more work to the roof.

Caity Chandler answered yes, they did finish working on the roof because they called the department and asked if they could finish due to the wood starting to rot.

Roderick Jackson stated that it could have been out for six months, and it still would not have rotted. They continued to build the structure when they were told to stop.

Michael Clinkscales asked if there is any danger from the setbacks being only four feet

Caity Chandler answered if there was a fire it might be danger because it is close but other than that no.

Azfar Haque asked if they could have built a deck and attached it to the house would the applicant still have to get a permit for the deck but not a variance.

Caity Chandler answers yes.

Michael Clinkscales suggested getting everything in order and resubmitting plans and get permits the correct way.

Andy Porter stateed that they cannot get the permit they need to move the structure or take the structure down and start over.

Caity Chandler suggested that the applicant can rotate the roofline, attach it to the building, and say it was a deck. They would not need a variance but just a permit.

Roderick Jackson made a motion to deny the variance at 1234 Lloyd Drive since the applicant kept building and family members should know to get permits if they work in construction. Michael Clinkscales seconded the denial. The vote was unanimous.



Department of Planning and Community Development 785 Forest Parkway Forest Park, Georgia 30297 (404) 366-4720

Item 3: Case: PP-2022-09

#### Variance at 3953 Jonesboro Road

Variance to reduce the number of required parking spaces from 55 to 44 as part of a new gas station development.

Caity Chandler stated the applicant, Kinh Enterprises Inc, is requesting a variance to reduce the number of required parking spaces from 55 to 44 as part of a new gas station development. The applicant plans to build a gas station upon 1.33 acres on the northern end of Jonesboro Road. The applicant stated that due to the shape of the property, parking will need to be placed around the whole building. With this design, they are requesting a reduction in the number of required parking spaces for the development.

The Planning Commission may grant a variance from the development standards of this ordinance were permitted under this Ordinance, if, after a public hearing, it makes findings of facts in writing, that:

- 1. The approval will not be injurious to the public health, safety, morals, and general welfare of the community.
- 2. The use and value of the area adjacent to the property included in the variance will not be affected in a adverse manner; and
- 3. The strict application of the terms of this ordinance will result in a practical difficulty in the use of the property. This situation shall not be self-imposed, nor be based on a perceived reduction of, or restriction on, economic gain.

Staff recommends **APPROVAL** of a variance to reduce the number of required parking spaces from 55 to 44 as part of a new gas station development. The requested variance will not be injurious to the public health, safety, morals, and general welfare of the community, and the use and value of the area adjacent to the property included in the variance will not be affected in a adverse manner.

Andy Porter asked the representative for the variance to speak.

Jim Joiner, representing the applicant, states that the issue is that when the lot fills up big trucks cannot fit in the parking lot.

Azfar Haque asked Caity Chandler why the sq ft of the parking is more for the convenience store than the restaurant.

Jim Joiner stated that no one knows what kind of business is going into the stores. What stores are going to go into the location must go to the city to get approved, so the city can control what goes into the stores.

Andy Porter says that the convenience store takes up most of the spots because it takes one parking spot plus one.

LaShawn Gardiner stated that places where she has worked you calculate the square footage of the development to calculate the number of the parking spaces.



Department of Planning and Community Development 785 Forest Parkway Forest Park, Georgia 30297 (404) 366-4720

Jim Joiner stated that the city can deny places that require more parking that is already there.

Azfar Haque made a motion to table the variance at 3953 Jonesboro Road. Michael Clinkscales seconded the motion to table the case. The vote was unanimous.

The case will tabled for 30 days and will be reconsidered at the next meeting on October 20, 2022.

Other Business:

Adjournment:

There being no further business, Michael Clinkscales made the motion to adjourn the meeting.

Donald Williams seconded the motion. The vote was unanimous. The meeting adjourned at 6:40pm.